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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

1:14CR276™

EASTERN DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ; INDICTMENT
Plaintil, ) CASENO. ARl
o, oo JUDGE GAUGHAN
HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY ; Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2,
PERSAUD, ) 1035, 1347, and 1957
Defendant, g
- The Grand Jury charges:
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At all times relevant to this Indictment:
A.  The Defendant and His Medical Practice

1. HAROLD PERSAUD, uka HARRY PERSAUD, was a licensed cardiologist in
the State of Ohio and a resident of We—sﬁake, Ohio.

2 PERSAUD’s private medical practice was known as Harry Persaud, M.D, and

was located at 29099 Health Campus Drive, Suite 110, Westlake, Ohio. PERSAUD had hospital
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privileges at Fairview Hospital, St. John's Medical Center, and Southwest General Hospital (“the
hospitals”™).
B. Medieare and Private Insurance

3. The Medicare Program was enacted by Congress én July 30, 1965, under Title
XVIH of the Social Security Act. Medicare provided medical insurance benefits fo any person
age 65 or older, to certain disabled persons and to those with chronic reﬁal disease who elect
coverage. Medicare was a health care benefit program within the meaning of Title 18, United
States Code, Sections 24(b) and 1347, it was a public or private plan or contract, affecting
commerce, under which medical benefits, items and services were provided to individuals.

4. Medicare Part A (Hospital Insurance) helped cover inpatient care in hospitals,
ineludin_g critical access héspitals, aﬁd skilled nursing facilities (not custodial or long-term care),
Beneficiaries were reQuired to meet certain condiﬁon;s to receive these benefits,

5. Medicare Part B (Medical Insurance) helped cover doctors® servies, outpatient
care, and supplics? when they were ordered by a doctor and medically necessary,

6. The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services ("CMS™) was s federal agency
within the United States Department of Health and Human Services and was responsible for
administeri&g the hﬁedic'are and Medicaid programs. CMS had the authority to make coverage
and medical necessity determinations. ‘

- 7. Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield, Medical Mutual of Ohio, United Health
Care and Aetna {collectively “the privale insurers”) were health carc benefit programs under Tiile
18, United States Code, Section 24(b). Often these private insurers provided secondary or

supplementary coverage (o individuals who were also covered under Medicare.
2
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C.  Reasonable and Necessary Services
8. Medicare and private insurers‘pmhibited payment for items and services that were
not “reasonable and necessary” to diagnose and treat an iliness or injury. Medicare claim forms,
* for example, required the provider wha made 4 claim for sérvices to cérﬁfy that the services were
“medically indicated and necessary for the heaiih of the patient.” The private insurers similarly
required providers to certify that services were medically necessary. In the area of gardiac
disease diagnosis and treatment, a doctor, and the hospital where the doctor performs cardiac | _
procedures, could submit claims for reimbursement Mﬁdicfmé and private insurers, but they
were required by law to accurately report the medical condition underlying the claim and :;nly
claims that were medicéily necessary were entitled to reimbursement.
D.  Cardiac Disease, Diagnosis and Trcatmeni

9, Coronary arterial cirenlation of blood is fandamental 1o the fumetioning of the
human heart. The follow_ing acronyms are used to deseribe the arteries that supply blood to the
heart; LMCA (left main coronary artery); LCX (left circumflex artery); LAD (lefi anterior
descending artery); and RCA (right coronary artery).

1. Coronary artery disease is the narrowing or blockage of the above described
coronary arteries, usually caused by atherosclerosis. Atherosclerosis {or “hardening” or
“clogging” of the arteries) is the buildup of cholesterol and fatty deposits (called plaques) on the
inner walls of the arteries. These plaques can resirict blood flow to the heart muscle by
physically clogging the artery or by causing abnormal artery tone and function. Significant
Coronary Artery Disease (“CAD™) was defined by the American College of Cardiology

Foundation as angiographically as CAD with greater than or equal to 70% diameter stenosis of at
3
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least one major epicardial artery segment, or greater thatt or equal to 50% diameter stenosis of the
left main coronary artery,

1. A nuclear stress test measured blood flow .lo the heart muscle both at rest and
* during stress on the heart. It was performed simifarly to a routine exercise stress test, but through
the use of an injected radionuclide such as thallium, it provided images that showed areas of low
blood flow through the heart and areas of damaged or at risk heart muscle. Nuclear Stréss Tests
were performed by a technician atl a doctor’s office and were reimbursable by Medicare and '
private insurers when ordered by a doctor and medically necessary.

12, Anechocardiogram (“"ECHO”) was a diagnostic ultrasound study of the heart that
used Doppler ultrasound to measure the speed of blood flow at a fixed point within the heart, An
ECHO was used to assess the funciion of the cardiac valves, the flow of blood bclwe'en the
heart’s chambers-and to caleulate the cjection fraction, or the amount of blood pumped from cach
chamber per heartbeat. An ECHO could be performed by a technician at a doctor’s office and
was reimbursable by Medicare and private insurers when ordered by a doctor and medically
necessary,

13,  An electrocardiogram (*ECG” or *EKG") was a diagnosﬁc medical test that

- measured the electrical activily of the heart. An ECG gave two major kinds of information.

First, by measuring time intervals on the ECG, a doctor could determine how long the electrical

wave took {o pass through the heart. This determined if the clectrical activity was normal or
slow, fast or irregular. Second, by evaluating the course of electrical activity passing through the
heart muscle, a cardiologist could learn if parts of the heart were electrically normal or showed

signs of disease. An ECG could be performed by a technician at a doctor's oflfice and was
4
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reimbursable by Medicare and private insurers when ordered by & doctor and medically
necessary.

14. | Cardiac catheterization was an invasive imaging procedure used by a doctor 1o
evaluate, among other things, the presence of coronary artery disease, and 1o determine the need
for further treatment, During a cardiac catheterization, a long, narrow tube called a catheter was
inserted into a blood vessel in the arm or leg. The catheter was guided through the blood vessel
to the coronary arteries with the aid of an x-ray machine. Contrast maicrial was injected through
the catheter and x-ray movics were created as the contrast material moved through the heart’s
chambers, valves and major vessels. The part of the procedure in which x-ray movies were made
of a coronary artery was called a coronary angiogram.

15, An additional imaging procedure, called intra—vascuiar ultrasound (“iVUS™),
could be performed mgeihc:r with cardiac catheterization to obtain detailed images of the walls of
the blood vessels. TVUS used sound waves to enable the physician to see inside the coronary
arteries. During an IVUS procedure, an ultrasound wand was attached 1o the top of a catheter.
This ultrasound catheter was inserted into an artery in a patient's groin arca and moved up to the
heart. A computer measured how the sound waves reflected off the blood vessels and changed
the sound waves into pictures, IVUS’s primary role was in determining the size
{diameter/length) of the diseased arlery segment, composition of the disease, and té check the
adequacy of stent results, IVUS was capable of ﬁaking two measurements in réiaticm to
deiemining. whether 1o insert a stent in an artery. It could measure and calculate the area percent
stenosis and diameter percent stenosis. To correctly derive an area percent stenosis, one needed

to have g reference area from an angiographically appearing normal segment either immediately
s .
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above or below the discased segment {or both) that formed the denoxﬁinator of the percentage
calculation; an isolated cross-section of a coronary artery was not used as it could not assess
whether it was a diffusely discased artery (which was not amenable to im_ervemicn) or whether it
was a focally diseased artery that could be amenable to intervention. PERSAUD sometimes used
IVUS.

16, Fractional Flow Reserve ("FER™) was another procedure that could be performed
tugeiher with cardiac catheterization, Uriiike IVUS, which assessed anatomy, FFR demonstrated
the functional performance of the artery. FFR measured blood pressure and flow through a
specific part of the coronary arlery and thereby assisted in determining whether or not to perform
angioplasty or stenling on intermediate blockages. FFR was available to PERSAUD but he did
not use FFR.

17. A cardiac stent was a device placed in a coronary artery to treat coronary artery
disease as part of a procedure called percutaneous coronary intervention (“PCI”). As a general
principle, cardiac stents were used depending on certain features of the artery blockage, such as
the siz: of the artery and the location of the blockage. Cardiologists and other medical
professicnalé sometimes reforred 10 the blockage as a “lesion” or “stenosis,” When 1hé blockage
was severe enough, coronary bypass surgery was another procedure that could be performed, A
surgeon could perform a cnmnarjf artery bypass graft (“CABG") that restored blood flow to the
heart muscle by diverting the flow of blood around a section of a blocked artery in the heart.

18,  Medicare and private insurers would not pay for a coronary steni that was not
“medically necessary.” 1t was generally accepted within the cardiac community that a coronary

stent was not “medicaily necessary” absent a diagnosis of at least 5 70 percent lesion and
ry p
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symiptoms of blockage. Medicare and private insurers likewise would not pay for a CABG that
was nol “medically necessary.”

19, Following placement of cardiac stents, patients were required lo take certain
medication regularly and they had a higher risk for additional and adverse- medical conditions
when undergoing certain other medical tests and procedures.

20.  Aorlograms involved placing a catheter in the norta and injection of contrast
material while taking x-rays of the aorta. Renal angiograms involved placing a catheter and an
injection of contrast material while taking x-rays of the arteries feeding the kidneys,

Renal angiography was a tool used to define disease in renal arieries and was medically necessary
only when non-invasive testing suggested disease or the patient was at increased risk for disease
and non-invasive testing was not available. Aortograms and renal angiograms subjected patients
to increased health risks associated with the use of contrast material, including risks of kidney
failure, cancer, and the formation of clots and debris that could cause strokes or loss of
circulation. Aortograns and ;fenal angiograms were separately reimbursable by Medicare and
privale insurers, |

E, Billing

21, The American Medical Association assigned and published five digit codes,
known as the Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) and Level 1 Healthcare Commion
Procedure Cading System (HCPCS) codes, The codes were a systematic listing of procedures
and services performed or ordered by health care providers. The purpose of the lerminology was
1o provide uniform Janguage that accurately described medical, surgical, and diagnostic services

and supplies, thereby providing an effective means for reliable nationwide compunication
; ,
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among physicians, patients and third parties. The procedures and services represented by CPT
and HCPCS codes were health care benefits, items, and services within the meaning of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 24(b).

22.  From on or about February 16, 2006, through on or about June 28, 2012,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAU Q, aka HARRY PERSAUD, did devise and intend to devise a
scheme and 'artiﬁce 10 {fafmud‘ and to obtain money from federal health care benefit programs by
mesans of false and fraudulent preténses, representations and promises,

It was parl of the scheme to defraud that at various times:

23.  PERSAUD submitted billings to Medicare and the private insurers for office
evaluation and management of patients, PERSAUD selected the billing code for each customer,
and PERSAUD's staff then submitted that billing code to Medic#re and the private insurers on
PERSAULDY’s behalf. PERSAUD used codes that reflected arscrvic'ﬁ that was more costly than
that which was actually performed. PERSAUD received payment from the patients’ insurance
companies based on the submission of claims with these inflated billing codes. PERSAUD
billed most office visits with CPT Code 99215, the highest code level and reimbursement rate,
without medical necessity documented for that code. .

24, PERSAUD perfcmnad Nuclear Stress Tests on patients that werf;ﬂ not medically
necessary,

25, PERSAUD knowingly recorded false results of patients’ Nuclear Stress Tests to
justify cardiac catheterization procedures that Vwere not medically necessary.

26,  PERSAUD performed cardiac catheterizations on patients at the hospitals and
8
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falsely recorded the existence and extent of lesions observed during the procedures in medical
records required to be kept by health care benefit programs.

27.  PERSAUD recorded false symptoms in patient records 1o justify testing and

‘procedures on patients. |

28. PERSAUD inscried cardiac stents in patients who did not have 70 percent or more
blockage in the vessel that he stented and who did not have symptoms of blockage.

29, ?ERSAUD used IVUS to evaluate the level of stenosis in an arlery when it was

-medically unnecessary to use IVUS.

30,  When using IVUS, PERSAUD knowingly and improperly recorded the area
percent stenosis in order to obtain a high enough number which was then falsely represented as
a diameter stenosis measurement — to justify insertion of a stent. Persaud initiated an area percent
stenosis calculation by measuring the angiographically appearing abnormal segment but did not
obtain a proper reference point fo complete the caleulation by obtaining measurement(s) at an

~aﬁgiographically appearing normal segment(s).

31, PERSAUD placed a stent in 8 stenosed artery that already had a functioning
bypass, thus providing no medical benefit and increasing the risk of harm to the patient.

32, PERSAUD improperly referred patients for coronary artery bypass surgery when
there was no medical necessity for such surgery, which benefitted PERSAUD by increasing the
arﬁoum of follow-up testing he could perform and bill 10 Medicare and the private insurers.

33, PERSALD performed medically unnecessary cardiae stent procedures on his
patients,

34..  PERSAUD performed medically unnecessary sortograms on his patients.
9 :
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35. PERSAUD perl‘omedrmcsdicaliy unnecessary renal angiograms on his patients.

36.  PERSAUD performed medically unnecessary procedures on his patients and
ordered medically unnecessary testing for his patients,

37, PERSAUD caused false and frandulent claims to be submitted to health care
benefit programs. |

38.  PERSAUD understood that patients who underwent cardiac siént procedures were
" more likely to become reguiar patients of his practice and would provide opportunities for
frequent follow up visits and testing. |

39. PERSAUD ordered that his cardiac patients have unnecessary rauﬁne follow up
visits and undergo unnecessary diagnostic testing such as Nuclear Stress Tests, ECHOs, and
ECG or EKG procedures,

40,  PERSAUD caused claims for medically unnecessary procedures, services and
festing fo be submilted fo health care benefit programs.

41, Asaresult of the scheme, PERSAUD overbilled and caused the overbilling of
Medicare and private insurers in the amount of approximately $7.2 million, upon which claims
Medicare and the private insurers paid approximately $1.5 million.

' NT I
(Health Care Fraud ~ 1B U.8.C. § 1347)

42.  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs I through 41 of ihe Indictment as if fully set forth herein.

43, From on or about Febljuary 16, 2006, through on or about June 28, 2012, in the
Northern District of Ohio, Eaéicm Division, and elsewhere, Defendant HAROLD PERSAU_D,

{0
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aka HARRY PERSAUD, knowingly and willfully executed, and attempted tc; exccute, a scheme
and artifice to defraud health care benefit programs affecting commerce, as defined in i‘iﬁc 18,
‘United States Code, Section 24(b), that is Medicare and the private Insurers, and to obtain by
means of false and fraudulent pretenses and representations described herein, money and |
property owned by, and under the custody and control of Medicare and private insurers, in.
connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefils, fiems, and services, in-
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.

The Grand Jury further charges:

COUNT 2
{False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters — 18 U.8.C. § 1335)

44.  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations sei forth in
paragtaphs 1 through 41 of the Indictment us if fully set forth herein.

45,  Whena ﬁédicai provider pgrfbrmeé a cardiac caihé(e_rizal’ion and inserted a stent,
the pravider was required to accurately document and maintain a rﬁecﬁicai record of his findings
for treating the patient, any imefventicn ancl subsequent reimbursemeni, in the cardiac
catheterization labs af the hospitals, PERSAUD documented his findiﬁgs in medical records such
as the “Can.rdiaiagy Catheterization Report,” “Cardiﬂiag_y Procedure,” “Cardiac Catheterization™
and “Cardiac Catheterization Report” (collectively the “Catheterization Report™).

46.  Moedicare and private insurers had the authority to conduct reviews of claims for
mediéai'necessit_y and to require the provider of services lo produce medical records to support
any claim made, A review of medical records enabled Medicare and private insurers to conlirm
that the services furnished were reflected on the claim as well as the medical necessity of the

11
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service provided,

47.  Onorabout March 23, 2011, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matter involving a health care
benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, aﬁd cause 10 be made, a materially faise,
fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, ca#sed to be made, and used a
materially false writing and document knowing the same contained a rﬁateriaily false, fictitious,
and fraudulent statement an.ci' eniry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient CB to state that the Iesion in Patient CB’s RCA was 60 percent, then well
- knowing that the Catheterization Report contgined a materially false, ﬁctitio#s and fraudulent
statement and entry, in that the lesion was substantially less than 60 percent and, in fact, was less
than 70 .parcent.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2.

The Grand Jury further charges:

COUNT 3
{False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters — 18 U.8.C, § 1035)

48,  The Grand Jury realleges and incarporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs 1 through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indiciment as if fully set forth herein.

49, Onorabout July 7, 2011, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matter involving a health care
benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a maierially false,
fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused to be made, and used a

12
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materially false writing and document knowing the same contained a materially false, fictitious,
and fraudulent statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an.entry in the Catheterization |
Report of Patient MG to state that the lesion in Patient MQ’s LAD was 80-90 pereent, then well
knowing that the Catheterization Repori contained a materially false, fictitious and fraudulent
stalement and eniry, in that the lesion was substantially less than 80-90 percent and, iﬁ fact, was
less than 70 percent.
All in violation of Tlitle 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2.

The Grand Jury further charges:

COUNT 4 _ ‘
(False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters - 18 U.S.C. § 1035)

50.  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs | through 41, 4_5 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein,

51.  On or about August 25, 2010, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, iﬁ a matter involving a health care
benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a materially false,
fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, causéd to be made, and used 4
materially faisc writing and document knowing the same contained a materially false, fictitious,
and fraudulent stalement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health

| care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient MG to state that the lesion in Patient MG's RCA was 75 percent, then well
knowing that the Catheterization Report contained a materially false, fictitious and fraudulent

13
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siatement and cntry, in that the lesion was substantially less than 75 percent and, in fact, was less -
than 70 pereent..
Allin violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2,
The Grand Jury further charges:

. COUNT 5
(False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters ~ 18 U.S.C. § 1035)

52, The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the ailegaﬁ(ms get forth in
paragraphs | through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein.

53, On or about June 2, 2011, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY ?ERSA_UD, in & matter involving a health care
benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a materially false,
fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused to be made, and used 4
materially false wi*iting and document kf}ewing the same contained a materiatly faisé, fictitious,
and fraudulent statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and paymént for health
care benefits, ilems and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient GG to state that the leston in Patient GG’s LAD was 72 percent, then well
knowing that the Cathelerization Report aantaiﬁad a materially false, fictitious and fraudulent
statement and entry, in that the lesion was substantially less than 72 percent and, in fact, was less
than 70 percent.

All in violation of Title 18, U’nitéd States Code, Sections 1035 and 2.

The Grand Jury {urther charges:

14
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. COUNTG
(Faise Statement Relating 1o Health Care Matters — 18 US.C. § 1035)

54.  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs 1 through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth hergin,

55.  Onorabout May 18, 2011, in the Northern District of Ohio, Ea§1crn Di'visi§n,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matter involving a health care
beneﬁt program, did knowingly and‘ willfully make, and cause to be made, a maleﬁa’i]y false,
fictitious, and fraudulent stalemém and representation, and made, caused to be made, and used a
materially false writing and document knowing the same contained a materially false, fictitious,
and frauduléht statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient SH to stale that the lesion in Patient SH's RCA was‘ 70 percent, then well
knowing that the Catheterization Report contained a materially false, fictitious and fraudulemt
statement and entry, in that the lesion was substanﬁail}; fess than 70 percent.

Allin violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2, ‘

The Grand Jury further charges:

COUNT 7
(False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters ~ 18 U.8.C. § 1035)

56,  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs I through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indiciment as if !‘uﬂy set forth herein.

57, Onor aboul March 24, 2011, in the Northern Distriet of Ohio, Easwm‘ Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAULD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matier involving a health care

benefit program, did knowiﬁgly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a materially false,
15 ‘ '
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ﬁctitiﬁﬁs, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused to be made, and used a
maler&éliy fulse writing and document knowing the same contained a materially false, fictitious,
and fraudulent statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
~ care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient AK -iﬁ state that the lesion in Patient AK’s LAD waﬁ 71 percent, then well
knowing that the Catheterization Report contained a materially false, fictitious and fraudulent
~ statement and entry, in that the lesion was substantiaily less than 71 percent and, in fact, was less
than 70 percent. | |

All in violation of Title {8, Uniled States Code, Sections 1035 and 2.

The Grand Jury further charges:

COUNT 8
{False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters - 18 US.C. § 1035)

58.  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs | through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein,

59.  Onor about February 28, 2011, in‘ihe Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matter involving a health care |
beneﬁg pfogmm, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause (o be made, & materially false,
fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused to be made, and used a
materially false writing and document knowing the same contained a materially false, fictitious,
and fraudulent statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
care benefits, iterns and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient JR to state that the lesion in Patient JR’s RCA was 71 percent, then well

16
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knowing that the Catheterization Report contained a materially false, fictitious and fraudulent
statement and entry, in that the lesion was substantially less than 71 percent and, in I‘ac-t, was less
than 70 percent,
- All in violation of Title 18, United Statés Code, Sections 1035 ahd 2.
The Grand Jury further charges:

COUNT 9 |
{False Statement Relating 1o Health Care Matters ~ 18 U.S.C, § 1035)

60.  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
| paragraphs 1 through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein.

63.  Onorabout February 26, 2010, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matier involving a health care
benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a materially false,
fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused o be made, and used a
materially false writing and dqcumem knowing the same contained a materially false, fictitious.
and fraudulent statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
care benefits, items and services, that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient JR to stafe that the lesion in Patient JR's LAD was 70 percent, then well
knowing that the Catheterization Report contained a maierially false, fictitious and fraudulent
stﬁi&mcnl and e-ziiry, in that the lesion was substantially less than 70 percent.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2.

The Grand Jury further charges:

17
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COUNT 140
(False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters ~ 18 U.S.C. § 10335)

62.  The Grand Jury feéileges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs | through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein,

63.  On or about Febtuary 26, 2010, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matter involving a health care
benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a materially i‘als_e,
fictitious, and fraudulent stalement and representation, and made, caused to be made, and used a
maierially false writing snd document knowing the same contained a materiatly false, fictitious,
and fraudulent statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of I’aiient IR 10 state that the lesion in Patient JR’s Circumflex was 60-70 percent, then '
well knowing that the Catheierizélian Report conia-ineé a materially false, fictitious and
fraudulent statement and eniry, in that the leston was substantially less than 60-70 percent.

All in violation of Title |8, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2.

The érand Jury further charpes:

COUNT 11
(False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters — 18 U.S.C. § 1035}

64.  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs | through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein.

65, Onorabout August 31, 2011, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matter involving a health care

benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause 1o be made, a materially false,
18
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fictisious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused to be made, and used a
materially false writing and document knowing the same contained a materially false, fictitious,
and fraqdulem statement andi entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient DS to state that (he lesion in Patient DS’s RCA was 60-70 percent, then well
knowing that the Catheterization Report contained a materially false, fictitious and fraudulent
statement and entry, in that the Jesion was substantially less than 60-70 percent.
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1033 and 2.
‘Fhe Grand Jury further charges:

COUNT 12
(False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters ~ 18 U.S.C. § 1035)

66,  The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in

paragraphs 1 through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indiciment as if fully set forth herein,

67,  Onorabout August 31, 2011, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division,
ﬂgfendani' HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a matter involving a ﬁealih care
benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a materially false,
fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused to be made, and used a
maierialiy false writing and document knowing the same contained a materially falge, fictitious,
and fraudulent statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health
care benelits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the Catheterization
Report of Patient DS to state that the lesion in Patient DS’s Lefl Main was 60 percent, then well
knowing that the Catheterization Report contained a materially false, fictitious and fraudulent

19
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statement and entry, in that the lesion was substantially less than 60 percent and, in fact, was
substantially less than 50 percent. -
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2,

The Grand Jury further charges:

COUNT .
(False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters — 18 U.S5.C. § 1035)

68.  The Grand Jury reaileges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
paragraphs 1 through 41, 43 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein,

69.  Onorabout December 29, 2011, in the Narthern District of Ohio, Eastern
Division, Dt:fcndém HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, in a maiter involving a
health care benefit program, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a
materially false, fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused to be
rﬁadm and used a materially false writing and document knowing the same contained a materially
false, fictitious, and fréuduient statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and
payment for health care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry in the
Catheterization Report of Patient VJS to state that the lesion in Patient J8’s LAD was 60-65
percent, then wezl_i knowing that the Catheterization Report conlained a materialty false, fictitious
and fraudulent statement and entry, in that the lesion was substantially less than 60-65 percent
_ and, in fact, less than 70 percent. |
Allin Qicla{ian of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2.

The Grand Jury further charges: -

20
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COUNT 14
(False Statement Relating to Health Care Matters - 18 U.S.C, § 1035)

70.  The Grand Jury realieges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forthin
paragraphs | through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein.

71, Onor about May 25, 2011, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Di.visiom
Defendant HAROLD PERSALID, gka HARRY PERSAUD, in & matier involving a health -care
benefit program, did k‘r}ow.ingiy and willfully make, and cause to be made, a materially false,
f”:ciitiﬂus, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused 1o be made, and used a
materially false writing and document knowing the same contained materially false, fictitious,
and fraudulém statement and‘ entry, in cozshectien with the delivery of and payment for health
care benefits, items and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry on the billing sheet for
Patient GG 1o state that GG was suffering from chest pain and angina, then well knowing thal the
biiliﬁg, sheet contained a materially fictitious, and fraudulent statement and entry, in that GG did
not then suffer from chest pain and angina,

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2.

The Grand Jury further charges:

- COUNT 15
(False Statement Relating 10 Health Care Matters - 18 1J.5.C. § 1035)

72, The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
* paragraphs ] through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indictment as if fully set forth herein,

73.  Onor about December 14, 201, in the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern
I}ivisinn, Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, ina mai_ter involving a

health care benefit pwgraﬁ‘\, did knowingly and willfully make, and cause to be made, a
21 '




Case: 1:14-¢r-00276-DCN Doc #: 1 Filed: 08/20/14 22 of 23. PagelD #: 22

materially false, fictitious, and fraudulent statement and representation, and made, caused to be
made, and used a rﬁate_riaily false writing and document knowing the same contained a materially
false, fictitious, and fraudulent statement and entry, in connection with the delivery of and
payment for health care benefits, ilems and services; that is, PERSAUD caused an entry on the
* medical record for Patient IS 1o state that JS was suffering from chest pain and dyspnea, then
well knowing that the medical record contained a materially fictitious, and fraudulent statement
and entry, in ﬂlgt I8 did not then suffer from chest pain and dyspnea.

Al in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1035 and 2,

The Grand Jury further charges:
COUNT 16 -

{Engaging in Monetary Transactions in Property Derived from
Criminal Activity - 18 U.5.C. 1957)

74,  The Grand Jury reaileges and iﬁcbrporates by reference the allepations set faﬁh in
paragraphs I through 41, 45 and 46 of the Indiciment as if fully set forth he-rain‘

75. Oh or about August 3'3, 2012, in thé Narihe*‘n Dislrici of Ohio, Eastern Division,
Déf‘endan’t HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, did knowingly engage and attempt
to engage in a monetary transaction by, through, and to a financial institution, affecting interstate
and foreign commerce, in criminally derived property of a value greater than $10,000, that is
Defendant HAR{)LQ PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, made a transfer of $250,000, via
check number 3776, from PERSAUD"‘S business bank account at Key Bank, identified by
account number XXXXXXX246, o a ceriifi.ca-tg of deposit (CD} at Ohio Savings Bank in the

name of PERSAUD's wife, identified by account number XXXXXXXXX442, such property

having been derived from a specified unlawful activity, that is, health care fraud, as atleged in
2
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Count 1 of this Indictment,
All i1t violation of Title 18, United Stales Code, Section 1957,

The Grand Jury further charges:

FORFELT

76.  For the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to -‘l_"itic 18, United States Code,
Section 982, the allegation of Counts 1 through!6 are incorporated herein by reference; Asa
result of the foregoing offenses, Vdefendam HAROLD PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, shall
forfeit to the United States any property involved in charges set forth herein, or any property |
traceable to such property and/or any property that constitutes or is derived, directly or indirectly,
from the gross proceeds traceable to the commission of the charges set forth herein; including,
but not limited to, the following:

a,  Money Judgment in the amount equal to the proceeds Defendant HAROLD
PERSAUD, aka HARRY PERSAUD, obtained as a result of such violations;

b. $93,446.25 in U.S. Currency, seized from Key Bank Account #XXXXXX6246 in 7
the name of i_-iaroid Peréaud; and,

é. '$250,188.42 in U.8, Currency, seized from Ohio Savings Bank Account

#3000 XKE442 in the name of Roberla Persaud,

A TRUE BILL.

Original document -- Signatures on file with the Clerk of Courts, pursuant to the E-Government
: Act of 2002,
23
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
EASTERN DIVISION
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, } CRIMINAL ACTION
)
Plaintiff, ) Judge Donald C. Nugent
)
Vs, )
| ) CASE NUMBER 1:14 CR 276
HAROLD PERSAUD, aka ) '
HARRY PERSAUD, ) JUDGMENT
)
Defendant. )

The above-captioned case came before this Courl for a trial By jury. At the conclusion of
the trial, the Jury returned unanimous Verdicts as follows: Verdicts of guilty against Defendant
Harold Persaud on Counts 1,2, 3,4, 5,7, 8,9, 19,11, 12, 13, 14, 15, and 16 of the Indictment
and one count of not guilty on Count 6.

The Def’enciam was charged in Count Iwith Health Carei Fraud or Aiding and Abetting
Heslth Care Fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347 or 2; fifteen counts
{Counts 2-15) of False Statement Relating 1o Heaith Care Matters or Aiding and Abetting False
Statement Relating to Health Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1035 or 2; and ane count (Count 16) of Money Laundering in violation of ’I‘itlé 13,‘ United States
Code, Section 1957 |

The trial commenced on August 3f . 2015, A Jury of twelve and six alternates were
selected and duly empaneled and swomn. Opening statements of the United States and the

Defendant were made. Court was adjourned unti} September 1, 2015 at 8:00 am.

The trial continued on September 1, 2015, Jurors number 1 and 4 were excused for
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health issues and were replaced by Alternates number 1 and 2. The United States called the
following witness(es): (1) Richard C. Elsasser; and (2) Dr. John Coleita. Court was adjourned
until September 2, 2015 at 8:00 a.xm.

The trial continued on September 2, 2015, The United States called the following
witness(es): (2) Dr. John Coletta, continued; and (3) Kathy Joe Parsh. Court was adjoumned until
September 3, 2015 at 8:00 a.m.

The trial continued on September 3,2015. The United States called the following
witness(es): {3) Kathy Joe Parsh, continued; (4) Dr. Miché.e:l Doprovic, and (5) Dr. Hiram
Bezerra. Court wes adjourned unfil September 4, 2015 at 8:00 a.m,

The trial continued on September 4, 2015. The United States called the following
witness(es); (6) Dr. Barry George; and (7) Anne Kistemaker, Court was adjourned until
September &, 2015 at 8:00 a.m.

The trial coritinued on September 8, 2015. Juror number 4 excused due to work
emergency. Alternate juror number 3 (Juror sumber 45) seated. The United States called the
following witness(es): (8) Dr. John Letcher; (9) Dr. Joseph Cacchione; (10) Nancy A. Bowman,
and (11) Joanie Mihalic. Court was adjourned until September 9, 2015 at §:00 a.m.

The trial continued on Scptemb&r 9,2015. The United States called the following
witness(es): (12) Elizabeth Stois; and (13) Deborah Costanzo. Court was adjourned until
September 10, 2015 at 8:00 a.m.

The trial continued on September 10, 2015, The United States called the following
witness(es): (13) Deborah Costanzo, continued; (14} Marilyn Hiéﬁ; (15) Jeremy Tolaro; and (16)

Sonda Kunzi. Court was adjourned until Septemberi4, 2015 at 8:00 a.m.
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The trial continued on Séptember 14, 2014. The United States cailéd the following
witness(es): (16) Sonda Kunz, continued; and (17) Kimberly Long, Cburt wé.s adjourned until
September 15, 2015 at 8:00 a.m.

The trial continued on September 15, 2015. The United States calied fhe following
witness(es): (17) Kimberly Long, continued; (18) Sharri Sedlak; (19) Sacqueline Rambert; (20)
Timothy Shular; and (21) Kimber!yVShuIar. Court was adjourned until September 16, 2015 at
8:00 am. |

The trial continued on September 16, 2015. The United States called the following
witness(es): (22} James D. Sustersic; (23) Roberta Sustersic; (24) Gregory A. G!enn;.(QS) Dr.
Lavinia Cozmin; and (26) Dr. Seamus Walsh. Court was adjourned until Seplember 17, 2015 at
8:00 a.m,

The trial continued on September 17, 2015, The (_Jnitcd States called the following

- witness(es): (27) Robert Martin; (28) Suzy Hariman; (29) Donna Jean Steine; and (30} Special

Agent Thomas Edward Corrigan. Court was adj oumed uatil September 18, 2015 at §:00 am.

The trial continued on September 18, 2015, The United States cailed fthe following

witness(es): (30) Special Agent Thomas Edward Corrigan, continued; (31} Matthew Bcckvéith;_

and (32) Dr. Joseph Lahorra. Court was adjourned umiit September 21, 2015 at 8:00 a.m.

The trial continued on Se_ptember 21, 2015, Aliernate Juror number 6 (Juror number 48)
was excused without object_ion. The United States called the following witnessfes): (33) Dr.
Robert Eiedennan; and (34) Dr. lan Gilchrist. Court was adjourned until September 22, 2015 at
8:00 a.m. |

The trial continued on Sej:)tember 22,2015, The United States called the following
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witness(es): (34) Dr. Ian Gilehrist, continued. The United States rested. Defendant reserves right

10 make motions pursuant fo Fed. R. Crim. P. 29 and called the following witness(es): (1) Dr.

Raymond Magorian; and (2) Special Agent Maﬁhew Beckwith, Court was adjourned until
September 23, 2015 at 8:00 am.

- The trial continued on September 23, 20135, The Defense called the following
witness(es): (3) Dr. Timothy Fetierman: (4) Christine Marie Miller; and (5) Dr. Jeffery Visconi,
Defendant rested. Defendant’s Motion pursuant o Fed. R. Crim. P. 29 was denied as 1o Counts
one (1) through fifteen (15) and reserved as to Count 16. The Court gave preliminary

instructions of law to the Jury. The United States made its preliminary closing argument to the

jury. Court was adjourned until September 24, 2015 at 8:00 a.m.

The trial continued on September 24, 2015. Closing Arguments of counsel completed.
The Court gave final instructions of law to the jury. The two remaining Alternate Jurors were
excused and the Jury thereafier retired to deliberdte. Defendant’s Motion pursuant to Fed. R.
Cﬁm. P. 29 is denied as to each count. Court was adjourned until September 25, 2015 at 8:00
a.m.

The trial continued on September 25, 2015. Jury deliberation continued. The Jury, in
open court, returned the following unanimous Verdicts:

VERDICT FORM
COUNT 1

Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY {insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of Health Care Fraud, or Alding and Abelling
Health Care Fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code
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Section 1347 or 2 as charged in Count 1 of the Indictment.

7 CT FORM
COUNT 2
False Statement Relating to Heath Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, Guilty _ (imsert inink
guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Alding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 2 of the Indictment. '

YERDICT FORM
COUNT 3
False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraud

-We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY  (insert inink
guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 3 of'the Indictment.

YERDICT FORM
COUNT 4
. False Statement Relating to Heaith Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, _GUI {insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health.
Care Matters, in viclation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 4 of the Indictment.

| VERDICT FORM
K COUNT 3
False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, _GUILTY (insert in ink
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guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matiers or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health

Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section

1035 or 2 as charged in Count § of the Indictment.

YERDICT FORM
COUNT 6
False Statement Relating {o Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and swormn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, NOT GUILTY ({insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Healih
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 ag charged in Count 6 of the Indictment.

VERDICT FORM
COUNT 7
False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY {(insert in ink
guilty or not guilty} of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matiers or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relafing to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 7 of the Indictment.

VERDICT FORM
COUNT 8
False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY (insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating 1o Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 8 of the Indictiment.
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\4 ICT FORM
COUNT Y
False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY (insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of Falge Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 9 of the Indictment.

VERDICT FORM
COUNT 10
False Statement Relating to Health Care Frand

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY (insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 10 of the Indictment.

VERDICT FORM
COUNT 11
False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY (insert in ink
guilty or not guilly) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 11 of the Indictment.

YERDICT FORM
COUNT 12
False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY (insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 12 of the Indictment.
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VERDICT FORM
COUNT 13

False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraund

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and swom, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY (insert in ink
guilty or not guitty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
(Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 13 of the Indictment.

VERDICT FORM
COUNT 14

False Statement Relating to Health Care Frand

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and swom, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, _GUILTY (insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of Faise Staternent Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abeiting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 14 of the Indictment.

VERDICT FORM
COUNT 15
False Statement Relating to Health Care Fraud

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GUILTY (insert in ink
guilty or not guilty) of False Statement Relating to Health Care
Matters or Aiding and Abetting False Statement Relating to Health
Care Matters, in violation of Title 18, United States Code Section
1035 or 2 as charged in Count 15 of the Indictment.

ERDICY PORM
COUNT 16
Money Laundering

We the Jury, being duly impaneled and sworn, find the
Defendant HAROLD PERSAUD, GQUILTY  (iosert in ink
guilty or not gailty) of Money Laundering, in violation of Title
18, United States Code Section 1957 as charged in Count 16 of the
Indictment.
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The Court read the Verdicts in open court, and thereafier, the Court polled the Jury as to
the correctnes.s-of its Verdicts pursuant to Rule 31(d) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.
Each luror afﬁrmatively.responded 10 the correciness of the Verdicts, The Court accepted the
Jury's Verdicss. The Defendant is referred to Probation for a Pre-Sentence Report and sentencing
is set for December 18, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. By Agreement of all Parties, a forfeiture hearing is set

~ with this Jury on October 9, 2015 at 8:00 a.m. Court adjourned.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DONALD C. NUGEN@
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

DATE: 0@%% % loi5
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XAVIER BECERRA

Attorney General of California

JANE ZACK SIMON

Supervising Deputy Attorney General
ALICE W. WONG

- Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No, 160141
455 Golden Gate Avenne, Suite 11000
San Francisco, CA 94102-7004
‘Telephone: (4153) 703-5597
Facsimile: (415) 703-5480) -

| Attorneys for Complainant

' BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA B
In the Matter of the Accusation Against, OAH Case No. 2017030687
HARRY PERSAUD, M.D." - | MBC Case No. 800-2016-022179
29099 Hlealth Campus Drive, Suite 110 DEFAULT DECISION
Westlake, OH 44145 AND ORDER _

, ‘ _ [Gov. Code §11520} ,
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No, C- ' ;
51114 _
Respahéent

On or about February 8, 2017, an employee of the Medical Board of California (Board),
sent by certified mail a copy of Accusation No. 800-2016-022179, Staternent to Res;mndént, _
Notice of Defense in blank, Request for Discovery, and Government Code sections 11507.5,
11507.6, and 11507.7 to ,Harr}; Persaud, M.D), (Respondent) at his address of record Wlth the
Board, which was and is 29099 Health Campus'}}ri_ve, Suife 110, Westlake, OH 44145, Onor

3| about Pebruary 27, 2017, beputy Attorney General Alice W, Weﬁg received a Notice of Defense.

(Exhibit Package, Exhibit 1% Accusation, the related dﬂcuments, Declaration of Service,

gertifted mail receipt card, Notice of Defeuse }

! 'The evidence in support of this Default Decigion and Order is contained in the “Exhibit
Package.”

1

"DEFAULT DECISION & GRDER (OAH Case No. 2017030687; MBC Case No. 800-2016-022179




—

LA L Y N I

8 2 B B R B RBEBE 3 e R B 2 3

On March 7, 2017, a letter was mailed to Respondent at the location whére he ié
incarcerated af the Federal Correctional Institution Elkhorn, P.0, Box 10, Liston, OH 44432,
informing him a hearing would be scheduled for June.1, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. at the Office of
Administrative Hearings at 1515 Clay Street, Suite 206, Oakland, California, On March 13,
2017, Respondent mailed a letter to Deputy Attorney Gene;;af Alice W, Wong, acknow]edgiﬁg ’
receipt of the March 7, 2017 letter and the hearing date of June 1, 2017. On April 18, 2017, a
letter and discovery lc’f exhibits to be offered at the Jume 1, 2017 hearing was mailed to
Respondent at the Federal Correctional Institution Elkborn if Res;ﬁo;ld@nt availed himself'to the
opporturiity to appear at the hearing by telepbone. (Exhibit Package, Exhibit 2: March 7, 2017 |

' letter to Respondent; March 13, 2017 fetter from Responident; and April 18, 2017 letter to

Respondent.)

On or about March 15, 2017, via regular maﬂ a Notice of Hsarmg was served on
Respondent at his address of record and at Federal Correctional Insututmn Elkton, P 0. Box 10
Lisbon, OH 44432, mformmg him that a hearing wottl-si be held on June 1, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. at
the Office of Adxmmstfa‘twe Hearings at 1515 Clay Street, Sulta 206, Qalctand, California,
(Bxhibit Package, Bxhzblt 3: Notice of Hearing and proof of Sﬁr\flce)

The matter was called for hearing at the date, time and lqcatmn as set Torth in the Notice of
Hearing. Deputy Attpmsy A_licg W. Wong. of the Attomney General’s Oféce appeared on behalf
of ;hé Complainant Medical ﬁbard_uf Califnrﬁia. Therewé&* no appearance by é_r on behalf of
Respondent. Respondent was aware of the hearing date and provided with the opportunity to
appear by telephone since he is incarcerated. At %:15 aum., Administrative Law Judge Mary
Margaret Andérson declared the mattera default, and at the tequest of Comlilainant’s counsel, the
métter was remanded to the agenty for action under Government Code section 11520, (Exhibit

Package, Exhibit 4: Findings and Declaration of Default; Order of Remand.)”

b/
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DEFAULT DECISION & ORDER (OAH Case No. 2017030687; MBC Case No. 800-2916~92217 ]
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FINDINGS OF FACT
. . . L .

Complainént Kimberly Kirchmeyer is the Exacui:ive ]}iréétor of the Board. The charges -
“and allegations in Accnsatmn No. 8(}(%2016 0221 79 were at all times brought and made sok:ly n
the official capamy of the Board’s Executive Dlraotm

IL. ‘ '

On or about March 12, 2003, the Board issued Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No.
(©51114 to Respondent. 'Thé Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate was in full foree and effectat |
all times relevant to thie charges brought herein and explre:d on Fehmary 28,2017, (Exh1b1£ .

H I’ackage Bxhibit 5; Certificate of License )

_ i
Business and Professions Code section 118 states, in pertinent part:
"(b) The suspension, eéxpiration, or forfeiture by operation of _iaw of a license issued by a
board in the depatiment, or iis suspension, forfeifure, or cancellation b’y _order of the hoard or by

order of a cowrt of law, or its surrender witheut the written consent of the board, shall niot, during

- any petiod in which it may be renewed, restored, reissued, or reinstated, deprive the board of its

Il authority {o institute or continue a disciplinary proceeding against the licensee upon any ground

provided by law ot to enter an. order suspending or revoking the license or otherwise taking
ciisciplinarﬁr action z;gainst the license on any such ground.”
, .C;alif::)nﬁa G{)vermﬁ&nt Code section: 11520 states, in pertinent part:
“(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice-of defense or to appear at the hearing, “l:he
agency may take action baseci upon the respondant’s express admissions or upm‘x other- emcienca

and affidavits may be used as evxdence without any noucﬁ: to responden

IV.
On or about February 8,2017, Regpondent wag served with an Accasaﬁdn; alleging cavses
for disciplne agamst Respoa&ent The Accusation and accompanying documerts were duly

served on Respandeni Respondent filed & Notice of Defense. Rﬁspondem was served with a
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i N'otice-of.Hearing scheduled for June 1, 2017 at the Office of Administrative Hearings. ' ’I‘hcre'

‘was no éppearanqe by or oi behalf of Respondent. The maiter was remanded to the agency for

action under Government Code section 11520,

b ' o ' v,

The allegations of the Accusation are true as follows:

'On. or about April 25, 2016, the New York State Board for Profﬁséional Medical Conduct
issued a Commissioner’s Order of Summary Action wherein Respondent -Was_ordgred not o _
practice medi;aine it the State of New York. On Angust 15, 2016, the New York Board issized a
Surrender Order wherein Respondent’s license was sun‘endemd.: The New York Board made
factual allegai:ionsfhét on September 25, 2015, i1i the United States District Court, Northern -
District of Ohio (E(gst_ar'n Division), Respondent ‘;tras found guilty of Health Care Fraud inr
violation of 18 [.S. C Section 1347, thirteen felony counts of Making a. False Statement Relating

I to Health Care Matters ith vmlanon of 18 U.8.C. section 1957, and one felony count of Money

Laundermg in violation'of 18 U.8. C. section 1957. (Exhibit 1, Exhibit A: Commissioner’s O.rder

of Sulmnary Action and Surrender Order of Respondent’s license.)

On or about July 13, 2016, the State Medical Board of Ohio issued an Entry of Order

{l wherein Respondent’s license was permanently revoked. 1'his action was based on Respondent’s

ec}nviction;s in the United States Distriot Court, Northern District qf Ohio (Bastern District) of
Health Care Fraud in violation of 18 U.8.C. Section 1347, thirteen felony counts of Mak%ng a
felony count crf Money Latmdcnng in violation of 18 U.5.C. sactmn 1957. (Exlnbﬁ 1, Exhibit B:
-Entry of Orcier permanently revoking Respondent’s Hicense.) ‘

On September 25, 20135, in the United States District Court, Northern district of Ohio
(Hastern Divisio;x), Respondent was found gulliy foﬂowing a jury triél, of one count of Health
Care Fraud in violation of 18 U.8.C. seetion 1347, thirteen felony counts of Makmg False
Staternent Relating to Health Care Matters inviolation of 18 US.C. se;::fion 1957, and one felony
connt 0;? Money Laundering in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 1957. (Bxchibit Package, Exhibit 6:
Septembex‘ 25, 2015 Minutes of Jury Verdict and Jury Verdict on Counts 1 to 16.) v
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crimes substantiatly related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a physician and surgeon,

- Professions Code sections 2234 and/or 2236. Moreover, Respondent’s failure to répprt either the

o

Respandent’s criminal convietions constitute unprofessional conduet and the convictions of

and are cause for discipiin’e pursuant fo Business and Professions Code sections 2234 and/or \
236, | | |

 Respondent’s failure to répcrt either the ﬁiing'-df thé criminala.gharges or the criminal
convietions in Violaticﬁ of section -802.1_ constitutes unprofessional conduct and is cause for
discipline pursuant 16 section 2234, (Exhibit Package, Exhibit 7; Declaration of Christina Delp In
Support of Default Decision,)

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES
Pursuant to the foregoing Findings of Fact, Respondent is subject 1o discipline under Code
sections 23{)5 and/or 141 (Discipline, .Restrictionﬂ or Limitation imposed by another Staie) in that
Respondent’s gondu{ct,Wculd have been grounds for discipline in California and the actions of the
New ";i?“ork State Board f_ér Professional Médical Conduct and the State Medical Board of Ohio as
set forth ébove, constifute cause for discipline. Respondent’s criminal convictions constitute
unprofessional conduet and the convietion of crimes substamiaﬁy related to the qualifications,

functions or duties of a physician and surgeon, and cause for discipling pursuant to Business and

filing of the eriminal charges or the criminal convictions in violation of section 802.1 constitutes

unprofessional conduct and is cause for discipline pursnant to section 2234,

i
1
i
i
"
il
A
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DISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT IS SO'ORDERED that Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No., C-51114, issued to
Respondent Harry Persaud, M.D., is hereby REVOKED.

Respondent shall not be deprived of making a request for relief from default as set forth in
Government Code section 11520, subdivision (e), for good cause shaw‘n.‘ However, sach showing
mus_t. be made in writihg by way of a motion to vacate the default decision and directed to the
Medical Board of California at 2005 Evergreen Streef, Suite 1200, Sacramento, CA 958135 within

seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent.

This Decision shall becorne effective on _Septenter 1, 2017
Itis so ORDERED: __ August 4, 2017

MEDICAL BOAR?) OF CALIFORNiA

Execuuve Dxrwtm

. SB2016202316

41785108.doc.
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' STATE OF CALIFORNIA
XAVIER BECERRA
1| Attorney General of California MED EQAL EGARQ OF CALIFORNIA
JANE ZACK SIMON . R £ 017
Supervising Deputy Attorney General ANALYST
ALICE W. WoNG
Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 160141
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000
San Francisco, CA 94102-7004
Telephone: (415) 703-5597
Facsimile: (415) 703~5480
Email: Alice.Wong@doj,ca.pov
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

1 29099 Health Campus Drive, Sulte 110

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No, 800-2016-022179
Harry Persaud, M.D, ACCUSATION

Westlake, (}H 44148

Physician's and Surgeon's Cemﬁcai&

i

7
I

No. C 51114,
Rc:a;p_qnéent.
Complainant alleges:
" PARTIES

L. :Kimbariy Kirchmeyer (Complainant) brings this Acousation solely in her official
capacity ag the Executive Director of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer
Affairs (Board), - |

2. Onorabout March 12, 2003, the Medical Board issued Physician's and Surgeon's
Certificate Number C 51114 to Harry Persand, M.D. (Respondént). The certificate is renewed
and current with an expiration date of February 28, 2017,

i
//i

1
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3. This Accusation is brought before the Board, under the authority of the following

laws, All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unlesé otherwise indicated,
4, Section 2227 of ﬂ_ﬁ@-Cade provides that a licensee Who is found guilty undc.%r the
Medical Practice Act may have his or her license revoked, suspended -fer a period niot to exceed
one ysa‘r, p‘i_aéed on probation and reqmred to pay the costs of probation monitoring, or such other
action taken in relation to discipling as the Board deems proper..
5. Section 2305 of the Code states:
The revocation, suspension, or other discipline, restriction or limitation imposed by

another state upon a lcense or certificate to practice medicine jssued by that staté, orthe

- revocation, suspension, or restriction of the authority to practice medicine by any dgency of the

federal government, that would have been grounds for discipling in Cali‘fafnia ‘of n licenses under
this chapter shall constitute grounds for disciplinary action for unprofessional c;mduet against the
licensee in this state, o ‘

6. Section 141 of the Code states:

"(a) For any licensee holding a license issued by a board under the jurisdiction of the 7

- department, a disciplinary action taken ‘byr- another state, by sy agency of the federal government,

or by ancther country for axty act substantially related 1o the practice regulated by the California
license, may be a ground for disciplinary action by the respective state licensing board, A
certifled copy of the record of the disciplinary action taken against the iicené&e by another state,
an agency of the federal government, or snother country shall be conclusive evidence of the
events related therein, . '

*{b) Nothing in this section shall preclude éboard from applying a spaeiﬁc statatory
provision in the licensing act administered by that board that provides for discipline based upona
disciplinary action taken against ‘éhé Heensee by another state, an agency of the federa)
government, or another country.”

E 3 - ’
7. Section 2234 of the Code provides that the Board shall take action againsta licensee

“who is charged with unprofessional conduct. -

2
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8. Section 2236 of the Code provides that the conviction of any offenge substanﬁéiiy
related to the qualifications, finctions or duties of a physiaién and surgeon constitutes
unprofessional conduct. - , _

5, Section 802.1 of the Code provides that a physician charged with a felony must report

the charge to the Medical Board within 30 days. The licenses must also report a conviction of

- any felony or misdemeanor within 30 days of the conviction.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLIN]

(Bisei;_iline, Restriction, or Limitation Imposed by Another State)
10, - On or about April 25, 2018, the New York State Board for Professional Medical

Conduct issued a Commissioner’s Order of Summary Action wherein Respondent was ordered

not to praclice medicine in the State of New York. On August 15, 2016, the New York I%oaéd

issued a Surrender Order wherein R&spoﬁdent’s license was surrendered. The New York Board -
made factual allegations that on September 25, 2015, in the United States District Coutt, Northern
District of Ohio (Eastern Division), Respondent was found guﬂty of Hsalth Cate Prand in
violation of 18 U.B.C. section 1347, thirteen felony counts of Makmg B 'Faise Stateraent Relating
to Health Care Matters in violation of 18 U.5.C. section 1957, and one felany cotnt of Money
Laundering in violation of 18 U.8.C. section 1957

A copy of the-_i’:ammissionezr’s Order of Summary Action and Su:gendgr Order of
Respondent’s license is attached s Exhibit A,

11, Respondent’s eonduct and the action of the New York State Board for Professional
Medieal Conduet as set forth in paragragh 10, above, constitutes canse for discipline pm%umt to

sections 2305 andfor 141 of the Code,

ECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE °

(Discipline, Restriction, or Limitation Tmposed by Another State)
12, On orabout July 13, 2016, the State Madical Board of Ohio issued an Bntry of Qrder
wherein Respondent’s license was permanently revoked. This action was based on Respandent’s
convictions in the United States Bistrict Court, Notthern Distriai of Ohio (Bastern District) of

3
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Health Care Fraud in violation of 18 U.8.C. Section 1347, thirteen felony counts of Making a
False Statement Relating to Health Care Matiers in violation of 18 U.S.C, section 1957, and one
felony count of Money Laundering in violation of 18 11.8,C. section 1957, |

A copy of the Entry of Order permanently revoking Respondent’s license is attached ag
Exhibit B, *

13.  Respondent’s conduct and the action of the State Bosrd of Ohio as set forth i

| - paragragh 12, above, constitutes cause for diseipline pursuant to seetions 2305 and/or 141 of the
. Code. |

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE |
(Criminal Conviction)

14, On Septémbcr 25, 2015, in the United States District Court, Northern district of Ohio

(Fastern Division), Respondent was found guilty fi}ﬁowing ajuty trial, of one count of Health

{{ Carte Fraud in violation of 18 U.5.C. section 1347, thirieen felony counts of Making a False

Statement Relating to Health Care Matters in violation of 18 U.8.C. section 1957, and one felony
count of Money Laundering in violation of 18 U.8.C. section 1957. )

- 15, Respondent's criminal convictions constitute unprofessionat conduct and the
conyictions of ctimes substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a physician
and surgeon, are cauge for discipline porsuant to Business and Professions Code sections 2234
and/or 2236,

16, Respondent’s failure to report either the filing.of the criminal charges or the criminal
convietions in violation of section 802.1 constitutes unprofessional conduet and s cavse for
discipline pursnant to section 2234, |

| PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Compiainan_t rgéum ts that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Medical Board of California issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate Number C 511 14,

lssued to Harry Persaud, M.D.;

4
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2.

3.

Revoking, suspending or denying appraval of Harry Persand, M.D.'s authority to

| supervise physician assistants, pursuant to section 3527 of the Code:

Ordering Harry Persaud, M.D., if placed on probation, to pay the Board the costs of

probation monitoring; and

4, Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper,
DATED: _ February 8, 2017
Medical Board of (l‘ailfﬁrma
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainani
8F2016202316
5
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NEWYORK | Department
DPPORTUMITY. _ @f %‘3 @aﬁth

ANDREW M. CUOMO HOWARD A, ZUCKER, M.D,, J.D.  SALLY DRESLIN, M.S., R.N.
Governor Commissioner Executive Deputy

CERTIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORX )
: §8!
COUNTY OF RENSSELAFER)

Douglas P, Mackey, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

I am with the Office of Professional Medical Condudt, New York State Department of Health, 1
am an officer having legal custody of the records of the Office of Professional Medical

Conduct. I, hereby, certify that the enclosed documents are true copies of documents from the.
files of the Office of Professional Medical Conduet in the cage of

Harold/Harry Persaud, MD
NYS medical license # 172341

QMQ%PM\ b

Douglas P, ackey
Program D:m‘:ctc)r
Office of Professional Mﬂd;cal. Condudt

Sworn 10 before me this.

, % daYOfé}e;lQJEn Logps » 2016
Ci)’(crx‘“}\wm/\ Q/@L\/ |

Kathieen & RC&)

Motary Public, State of New York
Qualified in Rensaelasr Counly
Commission expises August 31, 2018
Mo, 4765175

Empirs Stat'a Plaza, Comnitig Tower, Albany, MY 12237 health.ny.gov
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o BPMC No. 16-140
MEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT )
"I THE MATTER C COMMISSIONER'S
OF CORDER OF
HAROLD PERSAUD, MD, ‘ BUMMARY
T ACTION
TQ  Harold Persaud, M.D.
FBOE78-080
FOHERGon
- B780 snmggs Road
Lishon, O 44432

The undersigned, Howard A. Zucker, M.D., J.0., Commisslonsr of Maalth, pursuant
to MY, Public Health Law §230, vpon the recommendation of a Commities on
Professional Medical Conduct of the State Board for Professional Medleal Conduet, has
dstermined that Harold Persaud, §.D., Raspondent, New York license number 172341,
has plaaded or besn found guilty or convicted of committing an act constitufing = felony
undar New York State ldw, federal law, or the !aw ot anather jurtsdiction which, #
cormitted within this state, wauld have constifuted @ felony under New York Stale law, as
is more fufly set forth in the Slatement of Chargaes alflachad o the Nolice of Referral
Frocesding or Nofice of Hearing and made & part hereof,

it is therefore: ,

ORDERED, pursuant to NY. Public Mealth Law §230012)b), thal effective

| impnediataty, V'Raﬁ;;cmdant shall not ;::mi;;ﬁc;a madicing in tha Stale of New York, prpraclice
Il inany setting under the suthority of Respondent's New York llsense.

Any practice of medicine in violation of this Order

shall constitule Professional Mtt;mntimt within the

This Order shall remain In effect until the final conclusion of a hearing which shal
rommerice within ninety days of the senvice of this order and shall end within ninety days




th&rsaﬁm The hearing will be hald pursuant 1o the provisions of 'N_,‘*{, Pub, Health Law

1 §230, ang N.Y. State Admin. Proc. Act §§301-307 and 401, The hearing will be conducted
|| before & commiltes on professional conduct of the State Board for Professional Medioal
Conduct on & date and at s location to be sel forth in a written Nolice of Hearing or Notice |
of Referral Proceeding provided to the Respondent contemporaneously with this Order,

THESE PROCEEDINGS MAY RESULT [N A
DETERMINATION THAT YOUR LICENSE TO PRACTICE
MEDICINE JN NEW YORK STATE BE REVOKED OR

T SUSPENDED, ANDYOR THAT YOU BE FINED OR SUBJECT
TO OTHER SANCTIONS SET FORTH IN NEW YORK PUBLIC
HEALTH LAW §230-a. YOU ARE URGED TO OBTAINAN
ATTORNEY TO REPREBENT YOU IN THIS MATTER.

DATED: Albany, New York
April 28, 2016

Howard A, Zucl r MD., LD,
Commissioner of Health
New York State Daepariment of Health

Igulries should be directed o

Pagl Taul

Assaciate Counsel

Bureay of Professional Medical Condugt
Coming Tower — Reom 2512

Empire Stale Plaza

Adbany, NY 12237

{518) 4734282




NEW YORK STATE
YTATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDIGAL CONDUCT

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

N THE MATTER
oF
HARDLD {aka HARRY) PERSAUD, N.D,

JDATE: ___

BPMC No. 16-284
SLURRENDER
OROER

Upun the applicatin of {Respondent} Hawld Persaud, M.D. 1o surienider his leense as

# physiclan In the State of New York, which i made a part of this Surrendes Order, 1) is

ORDERED, that her Suirender, and ils lems, are sdoptad and i is furher

‘ORDEREL, that Respondent's siama Ba siricken from the raster of physicians In the

Blale of New York: il is further

ORDERED; [hal fhis Order shall be sifactive upon ssuance by the Bosrd, ailber

- by malling of » copy of Iis Surrander Ordat, either by first class mai o

Respondent al he addrass In e atfeched Surender of License spplivation

or by ceffified mall to Respondenl's aliorney, OR

+ upon facainile bademisslan o Respondenl or Respondenl's shomay,

Whichever Is first,
B0 ORDERED.
871572014
Cirmela Torrelli
Wiy Chair

State Bourd for Profepsional Medicnl Canduct

L T T TIL R
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NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

N THE MATTER SURRENDER
OF . OF
. - e e i} LigﬁNSE
HAROLD (gka I*i%RRY} PERSAUB, N.D, QRQ&R

Harold Pareaud, M.0., represents that all of the foliowing slatemsnts are lrus:

That on or aboul September 14, ’}93?; | was licensed lo practioe as a physician in
the Stale of New York, and issued License No.172341 by the New York State Educalion

Bapaiimant,

[ understand ihat the New York State Board for Professional Medical Conduct
{Bowrd) has charged me wilh ane of mofe sf:eciﬁcglians of professiona] msonndust, 8s sat
forthin a $Ea£a;mani of Chargas, mesked as Exhibit "A", which is altached o and part of
this Burrender of Licenss,

[ am applying o the Stale Board for Profassional Medical Conduct for permlssion to
sutyendsr ey license as a physician in the Stale of New York on the gfat:ndﬁ iha% fdonot
contest the charges agai‘nst ma, _

{ ask the Boord fo accept my Surmender of Lleense, and | agres o be bousd by alf of
the terms set forth In atiached Exhibit *8°.

! i understend thal, i the Board does rfot acespt my Surrender of License, none of its

tarms shall bind ma or constiiule an admission of any? of lhe agls of misconduct alleged;

this applicalion shall net i;:e used agamsi ma in any way and shall be kep In stricl




2
nonfidence; and the Board's denial shall be without prejudice to the pending disciplinary

|l procesding and the Board's final delermination pursuant to the Public Health Law,

| agree thal, if the Board accepts my Surrender of License, the Chalr of the Board
shall issue a Surrersder Ordar in aceordance with its lermis. | sgree that thig Order shall
take effect upon its issuance by the Board, either by malling of a capy of the Surcender
Crder by first é]azﬁs mah ;tc:} ma at {he address la this Surrender of Lisense, orte my
attorney by cerdified mell, or upor facsknoile transmitssion fo rﬁe or my attdrney, whiphev_ar ‘
I first, The Busrender Osdar, this agrearenit, and all attached exhiblts shall b publis
dacumants, with ‘cmty pationt idaniitiez;. if any, redacted. As publio doslrments, they may be

posted on the Department's website(s), OPMG shall r‘apnrf this action to the Nations] '

Fraciitioner Dala Bank, the Fedération of State Medical Boards, and any other etities that '

the Directar of OFMC shalt deem appropriate.
|- ask the Board o gocept this Surendsr of License, which | subinil of my own fras
will and not-under duress, compulsion or restraint. In consideration of the value lo me of

the Board's acceptance of this Surrender of License, sliowing me to resoive this matter

1| wilhout the various risks and burdens of & hearing on tha merils, | knowingly walve my

] right {o conlest the Surendar Order for whish F-agply, wheiber .admlnistraﬁveiy or judiclatly,

|

and | agrie iv be bound by the Burrentler Order.

Funderstand and agree thal lhe‘-attufﬂey for ihe Dapartment, the Director of the
Offics of Professional Madical Conduct and the Ghalr of lhe State Boaud for Professional
Medigal Condust each redain cémpiet’a discreflon sither to erter ino the proposad

agresment and Order, basad upon my application, or to deciine to do so, J further
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understand and agree that no prisr of 3eparaty wfitan o ol Sommumostion e Bl Gt
dineraiion,
nmﬂs__]_i:ﬁ{_/_& S S
| HAROLD RER

RESPOMOENT
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4.
‘Tiaa undmsigned sgme o Respondents ﬁﬁmhm Burrender of Livangs and Ondar
ani to e projrsad pensity, boms snd eondiilons,

,ﬂ‘w

Aasammunu risal
Buraau of Profsssional Mariloal Congund

paTE: & [

Dlratto
Cifice af Profeaalonel Medios] Gandust






